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1 DISCLAIMER
This information memorandum is to introduce the subject matter and provide a
general idea and information on the said matter. Although, the material included in
this document is based on data/information gathered from various reliable
sources; however, it is based upon certain assumptions, which may differ from
case to case. The information has been provided on as is where is basis without
any warranties or assertions as to the correctness or soundness thereof. Although,
due care and diligence has been taken to compile this document, the contained
information may vary due to any change in any of the concerned factors, and the
actual results may differ substantially from the presented information. SMEDA, its
employees or agents do not assume any liability for any financial or other loss
resulting from this memorandum in consequence of undertaking this activity. The
contained information does not preclude any further professional advice. The
prospective user of this memorandum is encouraged to carry out additional
diligence and gather any information which is necessary for making an informed
decision; including taking professional advice from a qualified consultant/technical
expert before taking any decision to act upon the information.
For more information on services offered by SMEDA, please contact our website:
www.smeda.org.pk
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2 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The proposed project is about establishing a Gravure Printing unit. The subject
project is strongly recommended to be established in the adjoining of the major
cities or urban areas. The prevalence of such facility would add economic benefits
in the country and would number of direct and indirect employment. Moreover,
features like low cost & less complexity associated with installation of Gravure
Printing unit make it more attractive project. Currently the project is being
designed / proposed for major cities with potential industrial FMCG growth but the
same can be proposed for other cities which can fulfill input and logistic
requirements of the project.
Initially project focus would be on customers from neighboring communities,
whereas at maturity domestic market would be preferred. The main feature of the
project would include hygienically produced Printed Package for FMCGs and
Other products, processed according to international quality and standards.
The Gravure printing unit has the capacity of producing approximately 2,375,000
kgs annually and will be operational for 330 days a year and 24 hours in 3 shifts
a day. Initially the Gravure printing unit will be operated at 50% of capital utilization
and will increase it by 5% annually. The Maximum capacity utilization will be 95%.
The total project investment is Rs. 505,081,110/- with an Internal Rate of Return
(IRR) of 35% and Net Present Value (NPV) of Rs 619,569,991/-. The total project
investment would be paid back in 3.85 years.
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3 INTRODUCTION TO SMEDA
The Small and Medium Enterprises Development Authority (SMEDA) was
established in October 1998 with an objective to provide fresh impetus to the
economy through development of Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs).
With a mission "to assist in employment generation and value addition to the
national income, through development of the SME sector, by helping increase the
number, scale and competitiveness of SMEs", SMEDA has carried out ‘sectoral
research’ to identify policy, access to finance, business development services,
strategic initiatives and institutional collaboration and networking initiatives.
Preparation and dissemination of prefeasibility studies in key areas of investment
has been a successful hallmark of SME facilitation by SMEDA.
Concurrent to the prefeasibility studies, a broad spectrum of business
development services is also offered to the SMEs by SMEDA. These services
include identification of experts and consultants and delivery of need based
capacity building programs of different types in addition to business guidance
through help desk services.

4 PURPOSE OF THE DOCUMENT
The objective of the pre-feasibility study is primarily to facilitate potential
entrepreneurs in project identification for investment. The project pre-feasibility
may form the basis of an important investment decision and in order to serve this
objective, the document/study covers various aspects of project concept
development, start-up, and production, marketing, finance and business
management.
The purpose of this document is to facilitate potential investors in Gravure
Printing unit by providing them with a general understanding of the business with
the intention of supporting potential investors in crucial investment decisions.
The need to come up with pre-feasibility reports for undocumented or minimally
documented sectors attains greater imminence as the research that precedes
such reports reveal certain thumb rules; best practices developed by existing
enterprises by trial and error, and certain industrial norms that become a guiding
source regarding various aspects of business set-up and its successful
management.
Apart from carefully studying the whole document one must consider critical
aspects provided later on, which form basis of any Investment Decision.
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5 BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT & PRODUCT
Following key parameters must be addressed as per pre-feasibility study under
preparation
•

Technology: This proposed unit with modern production plant includes 8
colour printing Gravure complete line, from roller bodies, lamination machines,
Slitting Machine, and a generator that will set up a Gravure Printing unit.

•

Location: The subject project is strongly recommended to be established in
the adjoining of the major cities or urban areas with high potentials of FMCG
production unit available.

•

Product: Keeping in view the market demand and characteristics “only
properly slitted and well protected packed product” is recommended to be the
final product of the proposed prefeasibility.

•

Target Market: The target customers for the proposed product would primarily
be FMCGs companies, small production units & individuals having unique
selling product that they want to be properly named and packaged,
confectionary items.

•

Employment Generation:
employment to 26 people.

The

proposed
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PRODUCTION PROCESS

The cycle of processing printed packaging film rolls mainly subjected to
machine/method used particular to the desired output product. Following is the
process flow of a Printed packaging film rolls:
6.1 Printing and lamination Process Flow:

Designed Gravure
cylinder
adjustment

Re slitting of
printed CPP/BOPP
Film

Adjusting printed CPP
Film one side &
Metalize film at other

Slitting the
sandwich as
per design

Desired Color
matching and
filling

Adjusting all
color rollers
accordingly
and start
printing

Pouring glue
in lamination
tray

Cutting the
film rolls in to
smaller and
compact rolls

Adjusting Machine
base line with
cylinder base line

Putting CPP/BOPP
transparent film on
initial printing roller

Adjusting heat as
required drying the
sandwich of two
films

Taking weight of
finished product
compact rolls

Packaging &
Dispatching

However a brief summary of the general operations in any particular production
line can be illustrated under the following headings:
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6.1.1 CPP Transparent slitting.
Cast Polypropylene Film (CPP) transparent it’s a bundle like rolled plastic film with
a weight of 500 to 1000 kg max, is used to make a printing packaging this is the
first step as it require properly slitted CPP Roll to be printed.
6.1.2 Colour Matching.
Colour matching is one of hardest and technical work in this process as it requires
expert person to understand the theme of colour, fill all due try with match and
required colour theme.
6.1.3 Drum /Cylinder Adjustment.
The third step which required adjusting drum or cylinder that contain picture/design
mark on them it may be 6 cylinder or 2 cylinder depend on job to job.
6.1.4 CPP Transparent printing.
When Cylinder got properly installed and fix with the edge of machine initially
slowly start printing of CPP Transparent film and see if that shows right result
speed it up as per its max limit
6.1.5 Printed CPP Slitting process.
Once the 1st roll of CPP film gets printed take it out from the roller and start slitting
it on slitting machine to be properly rolled with its edges.

6.1.6 Printed CPP and metalize CPP lamination.
The Rolled printed Film roll know need to be joint with metalize Cast
Polypropylene Film on lamination machine with glue, pour the lamination try with
glue place Printed Film at upper end of the lamination roller and metalize film at
lower end of lamination roller start the machine check the temperature to extend
that can dry the glue and make a sandwich of these two films
6.1.7 Slitting rolls.
Once the two sheets got lamented and dried, take the joint film and slit it properly
as it must be properly matched with its layer edges, Make rolls of 500 kg.
9
June 2021

Pre-Feasibility Study

(Gravure Printing unit)

6.1.8 Cutting rolls in design/ size.
Take the laminated roll of 500 kg and make small rolls out of it as per customer
requirement.
6.1.9 Cutting waste.
Cut the waste and damage material from the rolls to make it properly and wellfurnished finish product
6.1.10 weightage of finished goods.
Take the weight of finished product make an invoice according to that weight.
6.1.11 Packaging & Dispatching.
Properly pack the finished product in standard bags and dispatch it to the
customer or forward it to finished product warehouse
.

7 INSTALLED AND OPERATIONAL CAPACITIES
The Gravure printing unit has the capacity of producing approximately 2,376,000
kgs annually and will be operational for 330 days a year and 24 hours a day in 3
shifts. Initially the printing unit will be operated at 75% of capital utilization and will
increase it by 5% annually. The Maximum capacity utilization will be 95%.

8 CRITICAL FACTORS
•
•

•
•

Selection of proper location, equipment and staff would be required to run
project successfully.
Utmost care should be taken while selecting raw material sheets should be
made of virgin plastic or should be from a good vender. Only the best
quality CPP films should be used.
Continuous efforts should be made for up-gradation of the processing
techniques.
To attract large number of customers the product must be processed on
quality standards.
10
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•

Government rule and policies

•

Availability of skilled workers

•

Natural Disasters

•

High competition

(Gravure Printing unit)

9 GEOGRAPHICAL POTENTIAL FOR INVESTMENT
Know a day’s packaging is become one of the cure element for every product it is
an important part for developing a brand while number of FMCGS are focusing in
gaining more and more market share for them self in this sense packaging has
become very important and keen aspect to achieve companies desire.
In Pakistan almost every sector has a requirement of developing brand and for
development of brand there is a requirement of developing its packaging currently
Pakistan’s most of

10 POTENTIAL TARGET CUSTOMERS / MARKETS
The target customers for the proposed product would primarily be FMCG
companies, confectionary making factories Food chains, and any tangible product
provider or manufacturer. Initially the project will be focusing on neighboring
communities, and opportunity for expansion could be capitalize depending
successful marketing of product.

11 PROJECT COST SUMMARY
11.1 Project Economics
All the figures in this financial model have been calculated for estimated sales of
Rs. 93,000,000/- in the year one. The capacity utilization during year one is
worked out at 50% with 5% increase in subsequent years up to the maximum
capacity utilization of 95%.
The following table shows internal rate of return, payback period and net present
value of the proposed venture.
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Table 1: Project Economics
Description

Details

Internal Rate of Return (IRR)

35%

Payback Period (yrs.)

3.85

Net Present Value (Rs.)

619,569,991

11.2 Project Financing
Following table provides details of the equity required and variables related to
bank loan;
Table 2: Project Financing
Description

Details

Total Equity (50%)

Rs. 252,540,555

Bank Loan (50%)

Rs. 252,540,555

Markup to the Borrower (%age / annum)

16 %

Tenure of the Loan (Years)

10

11.3 Project Cost
Following fixed and working capital requirements have been identified for
operations of the proposed business.
Table 3: Project Cost

Capital Investment
Land
Building/Infrastructure
Machinery & equipment
Furniture & fixtures
Office vehicles
Office equipment
Pre-operating costs

Rs. in actuals
7,486,000
17,884,000
428,575,000
1,795,000
217,000
4,260,360
12
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Training costs
Total Capital Costs

460,217,360

Working Capital
Equipment spare part inventory
Raw material inventory
Upfront land lease rental
Upfront building rent
Upfront machinery & equipment lease rental *
Upfront office equipment lease rental *
Upfront office vehicles lease rental *
Upfront insurance payment
Cash
Total Working Capital

Rs. in actuals
22,935,000
21,428,750
500,000
44,863,750

Total Investment

505,081,110

11.4 Space Requirement
The space requirement for the proposed Gravure printing machine is estimated
considering various facilities including management office, Machinery processing
area, warehouse and open space, etc. Details of space requirement and cost
related to land & building is given below;
Table 4: Space Requirment
Description

Estimated
Area (Sq Ft)

Unit Cost
(Rs.)

Total Cost
(Rs.)

Area for Plant

4800

2000

1,344,000

Management Office

672

1800

8,640,000

Prayer area

500

1800

100,000

Warehouse

5000

1800

9,000,000

Pavement/Driveway

4000

500

Total

2,000,000

21,084,000

11.5 Machinery & Equipment Requirement
Plant, machinery and equipment for the proposed project are stated below.
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Table 5: Machinery & Equipment
Description
Gravuyer Machine
Lamination Machine
Slitting machine
Total Cost

Price

Qty

187,550,000
77,500,000
28,675,000

Total
187,550,000
155,000,000
86,025,000
428,575,000

1
2
3

11.6 Furniture & Fixtures Requirement
Details of the furniture and fixture required for the project are given below.
Table 6: Furniture & Fixture
Description

Quantity

Unit Cost
(Rs.)

Total Cost
(Rs.)

Office chairs

6

25,000

150,000

Office tables

6

50,000

100,000

Plastic chairs

23

2,200

50,000

Generator (500 KVA)

1

4,000,000

4,000,000

Air conditioners (2 ton split)

1

95,000

95,000

Electric wiring etc.

1

1,000,000

1,000,000
17,95,000/-

Total
11.7 Office Equipment Requirement
Following office equipment will be required for Graver Printing unit.
Table 7: Office Equipment
Description

Quantity

Unit Cost
(Rs.)

Total Cost
(Rs.)

Laptops
3-in-1 printer
Telephones

2
1
1

75,000
50,000
7,000

150,000
50,000
70,000
270,000/-

Total
14
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11.8 Human Resource Requirement
In order to run operations of gravure printing unit smoothly, details of human
resources required along with number of employees and monthly salary are
recommended as under;
Table 8: Human Resource Requirment
Description

No. of Employees

Monthly Salary
per person (Rs.)

Manager
Accountant
Gravuyer machine operator
Gravuyer Machine Assistant
Washing man (wheat)
Lamination Machine Operator
Lamination Machine Assistant
Slitting machine operator
Warehouse in charge
Sweepers
Office boy & support Services
Guards

1
1
3
3
2
2
3
3
1
2
3
2

Total

25

50,000
30,000
90,000
57,000
25,000
50,000
57,000
75,000
30,000
37,000
45,500
37,000
583,500/-

11.9 Utilities and other costs
An essential cost to be borne by the project is the cost of utilities. The
administrative expenses are Rs. 50,000 per month which includes the utilities.
Furthermore, promotional expense being essential for marketing of Gravure
printing unit is estimated as 1% of Revenue that for year 1.
11.10 Revenue Generation
Based on the capacity utilization of 50%, sales revenue during the first year of
operations is estimated as under;
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Table 9: Revenue Generation – Year 1
Description

No. of Kgs
Produced
(No.)

Finished
Goods
Inventory
(No.)

Units
available
for Sale
(No.)

Sale
Price /
unit
(Rs.)

1,188,679

1,188,679

1,188,679

583

All-purpose
Printing

Sales Revenue
(Rs.)

693,000,000 /-

12 CONTACT DETAILS
In order to facilitate potential investors, contact details of private sector Service
Providers relevant to the proposed project be given.

12.1 Machinery Suppliers
Name of
Supplier

Address

BD TECH
CHINA
Zheren
Printing
machinery

Nanyu
Country,Shangwang,Ruian
City,Zhejiang
Province,China

Zubair
Machinery
Compnay
Pakistan

p-952,Street#02,Near
Madni
Masjid/RehmniaService
station Raja Ghulam
rasool Nagar,Faisalabad

Phone

Fax

0086-57766862980

0092418721573

lily@chinaprintingmachines.com-

00863725951936
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E-mail

ZMCpakistan@gmail.com

Website

https://www.chinaprintingm
/contactus.htm

http://www.zmcpakista
www.abcmach.co
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13 USEFUL WEB LINKS
Small & Medium Enterprises Development Authority
(SMEDA)
Government of Pakistan

www.smeda.org.pk

Ministry of Industries & Production

www.moip.gov.pk

Ministry of Education, Training & Standards in Higher
Education
Government of Punjab

http://moptt.gov.pk

Government of Sindh

www.sindh.gov.pk

Government of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa

www.khyberpakhtunkhwa.gov.pk

Government of Balochistan

www.balochistan.gov.pk

Government of Gilgit Baltistan

www.gilgitbaltistan.gov.pk

Government of Azad Jamu Kashmir

www.ajk.gov.pk

Trade Development Authority of Pakistan (TDAP)

www.tdap.gov.pk

Security Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

www.secp.gov.pk

Federation of Pakistan Chambers of Commerce and
Industry (FPCCI)
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP)

www.fpcci.com.pk

Punjab Small Industries Corporation
Sindh Small Industries Corporation
Pakistan Horticulture Development and Export Company
(PHDEC)
Punjab Vocational Training Council (PVTC)
Technical Education and Vocational Training Authority
(TEVTA)
Pakistan Readymade Garment Technical Training Institute
Livestock & Dairy Development Department, Government
of Punjab.
Punjab Industrial Estates (PIE)
Faisalabad Industrial Estate Development and Management
Company (FIEDMC)

www.psic.gop.pk
www.ssic.gos.pk
www.phdec.org.pk
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www.pakistan.gov.pk

www.punjab.gov.pk

www.sbp.org.pk

www.pvtc.gop.pk
www.tevta.org
www.prgmea.org/prgtti/
www.livestockpunjab.gov.pk
www.pie.com.pk
www.fiedmc.com.pk

Pre-Feasibility Study

(Gravure Printing unit )

14 ANNEXURES
14.1 Income Statement
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14.2 Balance Sheet

19
June 2021

Pre-Feasibility Study

(Gravure Printing unit )

14.3 Cash Flow Statement
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15 KEY ASSUMPTIONS
15.1 Operating Cost Assumptions
Description

Details

Operational Days/ year
Hours operational/ days
Shift Length (Hours)

330
24
8

15.2 Production Cost Assumptions
Description

Details

Initial Capital utilization
Annual Capital Utilization Growth
Maximum Capital Utilization

50%
5%
95%

15.3 Revenue Assumptions
Description

Details

Revenue
Cost of goods sold per unit
Sale Price/kg
Production per year (Kg) installed capacity
Production Quantity sold (Kg)

693,000,000
463
583
2,376,000
2,376,000

15.4 Financial Assumptions
Description

Details

Interest Rate
Debt: Equity Ratio
Debt Tenure

16%
50:50
10 Years
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